



FREDERICK 13-18 BABE RUTH BASEBALL BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I - - NAME

This corporation shall be known as **FREDERICK BABE RUTH LEAGUE, INC.** doing business as Frederick Babe Ruth (FBR).

ARTICLE II - - STATEMENT OF POLICY

SECTION 1 - - It shall be the policy of FBR to conduct its activities so that the physical and moral welfare of the young people for whose benefit it is organized shall remain paramount and all matters of policy shall be determined on that basis.

SECTION 2 - - FBR has been organized for the purpose of educating and developing young people by encouraging their interest and participation in baseball. All Officers, Directors, members at large and Members shall bear in mind that the goal of this Organization is to provide a healthy baseball experience for youth and to encourage the growth of the sport. Though everyone engaged in sporting competition should have a desire to win, this desire should not be pursued in this organization to the detriment of participation, sportsmanship and fair play.

To achieve this objective, FBR will provide a supervised program under the Rules and Regulations of Babe Ruth Baseball, Inc. FBR shall operate exclusively as a non-profit educational organization providing a supervised program of recreational and competitive baseball. No part of the earnings shall inure to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual; no substantial part of the activities of which is carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and which does not participate in or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.

SECTION 3 - - In order to secure suitable and adequate financial backing to carry out the purpose of FBR, it shall be the policy of FBR to permit only such sponsorship as is consistent with the purpose for which FBR is organized and to select sponsors who are interested in FBR solely or principally as a means of contributing to the welfare of the young people.

SECTION 4 - - It shall be the policy of FBR to prohibit any direct advertising of alcoholic beverages or tobacco products in connection with FBR or any of its programs.

SECTION 5 - - In accordance with Section 501(c)(3) of the Federal Internal Revenue Code, FBR shall operate exclusively as a non-profit educational organization providing a supervised program of competitive baseball games. No part of the net earnings shall inure to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual; no substantial part of the activities of which is carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and which does not participate in or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE III- - MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1 - - Any person sincerely interested in active participation to achieve the objectives of FBR may apply to become a member. The Board of Directors shall make every reasonable effort to provide membership application to all interested parties and shall not restrict or in any way inhibit such parties from completing and returning membership applications to the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2 - - There shall be the following classes of members:

- a) **Player Members.** Any player candidate meeting the requirements of Babe Ruth Baseball, Inc., and who resides within the authorized boundaries of FBR shall be eligible to compete for participation but shall have no rights, duties or obligations in the management or in the property of FBR.

By agreement with Frederick COUNTY Babe Ruth, FBR draws player members from the following local schools:

1. Thomas Johnson High School District
2. Frederick High School District
3. Tuscarora High School District
4. Oakdale High School District
5. St. John's Prospect Hall

Any interested player from these schools is welcome to participate in FBR programs.

- b) **Regular Members.** Generally, parents and other adult relatives of the player members form the bulk of FBRs regular membership. However, any person actively interested in furthering the objectives of FBR may become a Regular Member upon approval by a majority vote of all Directors present at any duly held meeting of the Board of Directors. A membership application, which in the case of parents or guardians of Player Members may be FBR Registration form, will be collected and collated by the Secretary or other designated Board Member who will then prepare and present a list to the Board for approval of such applicants as have applied since the last Board Meeting. The Secretary shall maintain the roll of membership to qualify voting members. Only Regular Members in good standing are eligible to vote at the annual meeting. All Officers, Board Members, Committee Members, Managers and other elected officials must be active Regular Members in good standing.

SECTION 3 - - Members shall not be required to be affiliated with another organization or group to qualify as members of FBR. Members should not be actively engaged in the promotion and/or operation of any other baseball program that presents conflict to the goals of FBR as determined by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4 - - Membership may be terminated by resignation or by action of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors, by two-thirds vote of those present at any duly constituted meeting, shall have the authority to discipline or suspend or terminate the membership of any Member of any class when the conduct of such person is considered detrimental to the best interests of FBR. The Member involved shall be notified of such meeting, informed of the general nature of the charges and given an opportunity to appear at the meeting to answer such charges.

Any Board member that for unexcused reasons misses two consecutive board meetings will be consider voluntarily resigning from their position.

The Board of Directors shall, in the case of a Player Member, give notice to the manager of the team of which the player is a member. Said manager shall appear, in the capacity of an advisor, with the player before a duly appointed committee of the Board of Directors, which shall have full power to suspend or revoke such player's right to future participation.

Upon membership termination the Member can no longer manage a team, hold any elected or appointed position(s) with FBR until such time as all outstanding arrears are paid in full (this includes any team, all star equipment and uniforms.) Treasurer to provide report on those required to correct outstanding balances as part of the treasurer's report.

SECTION 5 - - FBR will make every effort to field teams in each age or ability division that the County Organizations authorizes. These include but are not limited to: 1) 13-15 American, 2) 13-15 National, 3) 13 Prep and 4) 16-18.

ARTICLE IV - - DUES AND FEES

SECTION 1 - - Dues for Members may be fixed at such amounts to ensure FBR is financially sound. The Board of Directors shall determine prior to the beginning of any membership period.

SECTION 2 - - A reasonable player participation fee shall be assessed as an obligation to assure the operational continuity of FBR. This fee may be fixed at such amounts, as the Board of Directors shall determine prior to the beginning of any enrollment period. The parent(s) or legal guardian(s) of each player are responsible for ensuring that all registration or other such fees which are owed to FBR are paid in full promptly. Failure to do so shall result in the membership of said parent(s) or legal guardian(s) being termed "not in good standing" and being suspended in accordance with the procedures set forth in Article III, Section 4.

ARTICLE V - - MEETINGS

SECTION 1 - - The Membership of FBR shall hold an annual meeting within the 1st quarter of each year at a place determined by the Board of Directors. Notice of time and place of such annual meeting shall be made known to the Membership of FBR through any media source, internet, press or TV and/or individual mailings, not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the meeting.

The membership shall receive at the Annual Meeting of the Members a report verified by the President and Treasurer, or by a majority of the Directors, showing the whole amount of real and personal property owned by FBR, where located, and where and how invested, the amount and nature of the property acquired during the year immediately preceding, the date of the report and the manner of acquisition, the amount applied, appropriated or expended during the year immediately preceding the date, and the purposes, objects or persons to or for which such applications, appropriations or expenditures have been made; and the names and places of residences of the persons who have been admitted to the membership of FBR during such year, which report shall be filed with the records of FBR and an abstract thereof entered in the minutes of the proceedings of the Annual Meeting.

SECTION 2 - - Special meetings of FBR Membership may be called by the President, or by majority vote of the Board of Directors, or upon verbal or written request to the Secretary. Notice of time and place of the special meeting of FBR Membership shall be made known to the Membership of FBR not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting. No business other than that specified in the notice of the meeting shall be transacted at any special meeting of

the Members.

SECTION 3 - - Only Members shall be entitled to vote at the annual meeting of FBR. A majority of eligible Members present including absentee ballot shall be required for election and questions brought to vote.

SECTION 4 - - The presence in person or by absentee ballot of all those in attendance of eligible Members shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any special or annual meeting of FBR.

SECTION 5 - - For the expressed purpose of accommodating a Member in good standing that cannot be in attendance at a meeting of FBR, an absentee ballot may be requested and obtained from the Secretary of FBR. The absentee ballot shall be properly completed, signed and returned in a sealed envelope to the Secretary prior to the date of the meeting. The Secretary shall present all absentee ballots to the President on the date of the meeting prior to the conduct of the meeting business.

SECTION 6 - - The rules contained in the most current edition of "*Robert's Rules of Order*" shall govern the proceedings of all meetings in all cases, which they are applicable and not inconsistent with these By-Laws and any special rules of order FBR shall adopt.

ARTICLE VI - - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1 - - The management of the property and affairs of FBR shall be vested in the Board of Directors. The number of Directors shall be not less than five (5) or more than fifteen (15) voting members. The Directors shall upon election immediately enter upon the performance of their duties and shall continue in office until their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified.

SECTION 2 - - The Board membership shall include as a minimum the following Officers: President, Vice-President(s), Secretary, Treasurer, Player Agent, past President (non –voting).

SECTION 3 - - The number of board members within the limits prescribed by the foregoing Section 1, can be increased at any regular or special meeting of the Members, and if the number is increased, the additional members at large may be elected at the meeting at which the increase is voted, or at any subsequent meeting by those in attendance. The candidates receiving the highest number of votes of all Members present or represented by a properly executed and signed absentee ballot filed with the Secretary prior to the election meeting shall fill the vacant positions as determined in Section 1. The Directors shall, upon election, enter upon the performance of their duties on the second Sunday in November and continue until the next November. In the event that, for whatever reason, another Board has not been elected by the second Sunday in November, the incumbent Board will continue in office until such time as the Members duly elect another Board.

SECTION 4 - - If any vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors, by death, resignation, or otherwise, it may be filled by majorities vote of the remaining Directors at any regular meeting or at any special meeting called for that purpose.

SECTION 5 - - Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately following the beginning of their term and on such days thereafter as shall be determined by the Board. The first meeting shall take place on or before the second Sunday in December. The President or the

Secretary may, whenever they deem it advisable or the Secretary shall at the request in writing of five (5) Directors issue a call for a special meeting of the Board. Notice of each meeting shall be given by the Secretary to each Director by email at least three (3) days before the time appointed for the meeting to the last recorded address of each Director or by telephone or personal notice twenty-four (24) hours preceding the meeting.

In the case of special meetings, such notice shall include the purpose of the meeting and no matters not so stated may be acted upon at the meeting. Fifty percent (50%) plus one member of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

SECTION 6 - - The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint standing committees and members at large as it shall determine appropriate and to delegate such powers to them as the Board shall deem advisable and which it may properly delegate.

The Board may adopt such rules and regulations for the conduct of its meetings and the management of FBR, as it may deem proper.

The Board shall have the power by two-thirds vote of those present at any regular or special meeting to discipline, suspend or remove any Director or Officer or member at large or Committee Member of FBR in accordance with the procedure set forth in Article III, Section 4.

ARTICLE VII - - OFFICERS, DUTIES AND POWERS

SECTION 1 - - Upon being duly elected at the annual meeting and as soon as possible after starting their term of office, the Directors shall meet and elect Officers and appoint committees for the ensuing year.

SECTION 2 - - The Executive Officers of FBR shall consist of a President, one or more Vice-Presidents, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and Player Agent. All Officers shall hold office based prescribed term of service or until their successors are duly elected.

The Board of Directors may appoint such other Officers or members at large as it may deem necessary or desirable, and may prescribe the powers and duties of each and may fill any vacancy that may occur in any office.

SECTION 3 - -**The President** will represent FBR as spokesperson and will be chairman of the Executive Board. They will oversee all functions of FBR and conduct annual FBR meetings in January of each year. **This position is the primary point of contact regarding FBR issues.** FBR President is allowed to manage a team and to be on other leagues Board of Directors. This person will make themselves available to FBR parents to address any and all issues brought up. If FBR president cannot resolve or feels additional input is required for an action or decision; FBR president will call a special meeting of the board to resolve. A special meeting is required if a written formal complaint is received or if there is violation of the code of conduct. The President will not be allowed to vote at the board meetings except in a case of a tie. FBR President position is elected to a one-year term.

SECTION 4 - - **the Vice President(s)** will substitute for the President when needed and will be vice chairman of the Executive Board. The Vice President will coordinate all player and Director and Officer insurance. The Vice President will also coordinate all Board Member, Managers, and Coaches background checks and report the results to the Executive Board as well

as the County Board at the beginning of each season. The Vice President will chair the Rules Committee and be responsible for the maintaining FBR constitution and rules, and distribution of these rules to the proper people. The Vice President is eligible to manage a team. The Vice President is also responsible to ensure the rules/policy of FBR are followed. The Vice President(s) position is elected to a two-year term.

SECTION 5 - - the Secretary will oversee the marketing and internal FBR communications. The position will, provide meeting notices and minutes to all Board members within 96 hours of any Board meeting. In the event there is no Communications Board member, the Secretary will:

- Be responsible for FBR Communications via Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and various print media.
- Distribute all correspondence between FBR and outside entities such as the Frederick News Post and other print media.
- Run advertisements and tryout notices
- Coordinate newsletter and any parent communications.

The Secretary will also be responsible for the meeting location and the minutes of any board meetings. The Secretary position is elected to a two-year term.

SECTION 6 - - the Treasurer will oversee all incoming and outgoing financial transactions of FBR accounts. The Treasurer will be responsible for ensuring all contracts, specifically, concession services, trash dumpsters and porta-johns at all fields that may require their use. The Treasurer oversees FBRs central and sub accounts; sign checks and dispenses funds as approved by FBR President. The Treasurer will review the monthly financial reports and make recommendations to the Executive Board. The Treasurer must provide a financial statement to the board by the 20th of the following month as well as an annual financial report within thirty days of the close of FBR's fiscal year. The Treasurer will be responsible for all Insurance related activities at FBR level. The Treasurer position is elected to a two-year term.

SECTION 7 - - the Player Agent or Agents shall supervise the annual registration of players, tryout sessions and distribution of players among League teams, shall maintain any listing of eligible players not assigned to teams who may be available as replacement players and provide all divisional rosters to the County Coordinator. The player agent is responsible for organizing player evaluations. The Player Agent position is elected to a one-year term.

SECTION 8 - - the Members at Large elected by the membership at the annual meeting or duly appointed by the board of directors. Members at large must hold an active position and contribute to the success of the organization. The member at large positions are elected to a one-year term.

SECTION 9 - - Election of Officers

The President will call for a volunteer to act as "election official". Nominees for each position or for a block of board members will be taken from the floor at the annual league meeting. Should there be only one nominee a majority show of hands will elect. The "election official", will in the case of a 2 nominees for a given position, coordinate a written ballot election and count and confirm the winner by simple majority. Those members attending the annual meeting will elect all positions. If no approved nominee for any position is selected at the annual meeting the incumbent will remain in office until the board can appoint a volunteer. If a person in an elected position withdrawals from participation the board will assign an individual to the position to fill the term of the position or until the next annual meeting.

ARTICLE VIII - - MEMBERS AT LARGE

SECTION 1 – Concessions - Management Member at large. The Board of Directors at its discretion shall appoint a concessions management member at large.

The concessions management member at large is responsible for all concessions stand activities during the season. This includes:

- (a) Arranging for pre-season cleaning of all concessions stands
- (b) Stocking all concessions stands
- (c) Coordination of permit with the county
- (d) Correction of all facility and equipment related improvements (coordination with the city)
- (e) Coordinating all vendors and related contacts
- (f) Arranging for post season cleaning

SECTION 2 – Concessions - Coordinator Member at Large. The Board of Directors at its discretions shall appoint a Concessions Coordinator Management member at large.

The concessions coordinator member at large is responsible for overseeing the staffing of the concession stand during any and all events. This includes:

- (a) Coordinating with the individual teams to ensure that the concession stand is open and staffed during all games
- (b) Coordinating staffing of the concession stand during FBR sponsored events
- (c) Coordinating staffing of the concession stand during non-FBR sponsored events
- (d) Maintaining an accurate listing of who has worked their required shifts in the concession stand so that refunds can be distributed to the appropriate parties

SECTION 3 -- Fund Raising Member at large. The Board of Directors at its discretion may appoint a Fund Raising member at large.

The fund raising member at large is responsible for:

- a) The Treasurer shall be an ex-officio and provide oversight of fund raising activities
- b) Investigating ways and means of financing FBR including team sponsorships and submit recommendations.
- c) Identifying various annual fund raising opportunities and submitting to the board for approval.

SECTION 4 -- Equipment & uniforms Member at large.

The equipment & uniform member at large is responsible for:

- (a) Maintain equipment & uniform inventory
- (b) Ordering appropriate amounts of team equipment
- (c) Coordinating uniform requirements and ordering thereof

SECTION 5 -- Umpire In Chief Member at large. The Board of Directors at its discretion may appoint an Umpire in Chief – member at large

The umpire in chief member at large is responsible for recruiting and interviewing umpire organizations to provide umpiring services to FBR. The umpire in chief member at large shall then make a recommendation to the President of which organization to contract with.

SECTION 6 -- Grounds Member at large. The Board of Directors at its discretion may appoint a Grounds member at large. This position shall be responsible for the oversight of safety and maintenance of the playing field(s), buildings, and grounds including, if required, liaising with

the Participating organizations or the City of Frederick. The position is responsible for ensuring Turf Dry and Field Chalk is available at all fields used by FBR. It shall report any deficiency to FBR Board of Directors so appropriate action can be reported to the City department that is responsible for the field.

The Grounds member at large shall be responsible for:

- (a) Ensuring all baseball diamonds used by FBR are considered safe for use in cooperation with the Grounds Committee.
- (b) Ensuring all baseball diamonds and/or equipment bags are equipped with First Aid Kits in cooperation with the equipment/uniform member at large.
- (c) Obtain Turf Dry and field chalk for all fields
- (d) Assisting the establishment of emergency procedures that include a pre-game check/plan in the event of an accident/incident.

This task may be assigned to an individual Officer.

SECTION 7 -- Audit Member at large. The Board of Directors at its discretion shall appoint an Audit member at large. The President, Treasurer or signatories of checks are not eligible.

- a) The audit member at large will review the FBRs books and records annually prior to the Annual General Meeting and attach a statement of its findings to the annual financial statement of the President and Treasurer; or may, if directed by the Board of Directors or Membership, secure the services of a Chartered Accountant to accomplish such review.

SECTION 8 -- Webmaster Member at large. The Board of Directors shall appoint a Webmaster.

The Webmaster shall be responsible for:

- (a) Maintaining the "League's" Web Site.
- (b) Ensuring that FBR meets the International Web Site requirements.
- (c) Working with the President to ensure that information is posted accurately and in a timely fashion

SECTION 9 -- Past President. The departing past president, should they desire, will automatically be eligible to fill the position Past President. The Past President's role is to provide guidance and council to the incoming President based on their experience. The position of past president is a non-voting role.

SECTION 10 -- Communications Member at large. This position is responsible for FBR Communications via Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and various print media. The position will distribute all correspondence between FBR and outside entities. The position will, run advertisements, tryout notices and coordinate newsletters and any parent communications not directly from the President.

SECTION 11 -- Managers Representative Member at large. The individual in this position is elected yearly by the FBR Managers at the beginning of the spring season. If the individual elected does not return in the fall season, a new representative will be elected by the fall managers. The person in this position is responsible for communicating Team, Managers, and Coaches concerns, needs and requirements to the Board and communicating Board decisions back to the managers.

SECTION 12 – 13-15 Division Commissioner Member at large. The individual in this position is responsible for overseeing the operations of all teams in the various 13-15 divisions offered. This individual will assist the organization Vice President in conducting background checks of all 13-15 division managers and coaches. The individual is also responsible for verifying that ALL Managers and Coaches have taken the Babe Ruth Coaching Baseball online course as well as the online Concussion course required by this Organization. The individual is responsible for enforcing any and all disciplinary actions to Managers, Coaches and Players in the division. In the event of such an action against a Manager or Coach this individual shall report corrective measure taken to ensure that the infraction does not occur again to the Board. In the event a 13-15 FBR Division team were to forfeit a game, it is the responsibility of this individual to investigate why the forfeit happened and report the findings and corrective actions to the Board.

SECTION 13 – 16-18 Division Commissioner Member at large. The individual in this position is responsible for overseeing the operations of all teams in the various 16-18 divisions offered. This individual will assist the organization Vice President in conducting background checks of all 16-18 division managers and coaches. The individual is also responsible for verifying that ALL Managers and Coaches have taken the Babe Ruth Coaching Baseball online course as well as the online Concussion course required by this Organization. The individual is responsible for enforcing any and all disciplinary actions to Managers, Coaches and Players in the division. In the event of such an action against a Manager or Coach this individual shall report corrective measure taken to ensure that the infraction does not occur again to the Board. In the event a 16-18 FBR Division team were to forfeit a game, it is the responsibility of this individual to investigate why the forfeit happened and report the findings and corrective actions to the Board.

ARTICLE IX -- OTHER COMMITTEES, MANAGERS, COACHES AND UMPIRES

SECTION 1 - - The Manager Selection Committee, shall appoint Team Managers and Coaches seasonally *should it be required*. Managers shall be responsible for the selection of their teams per FBRs process and for the actions of their teams on the field.

SECTION 2 - - Manager Selection Committee. The FBR Board of Directors strongly suggests that the Manager Selection Committee consisting of a minimum of three (3) appointed Non-Coaching Directors or Members:

- (a) Advertise for Managers each year with the assistance of FBR Secretary.
- (b) Interview all screened potential Division Level Managers and when possible Assistant Coaches.
- (c) Recommend to the Vice-President and President the proposed Managers and Assistant Coaches taking into consideration:
 - 1) Experience
 - 2) Baseball knowledge
 - 3) Commitment
 - 4) Interpersonal skills
 - 5) Coaching philosophy
 - 6) Security/Background Check
- (d) Review complaints from others concerning managers or coaches conduct. Get any complaint in writing. Interview the parties and others involved in the complaint. Make

recommendations to the Board as to sanctions, suspensions or release from FBR.

SECTION 3 -- Subject to the approval of the FBR Board of Directors, organizations providing umpiring services shall be contracted annually by the FBRs Board of Directors. The contracted organization shall be responsible for umpire assignments for their actions on the field.

SECTION 4 -- **Nominating Committee or Nominations Officer.** The Board of Directors may appoint a Nominating Committee consisting of three (3) Directors and other appointed Regular Members should the need exist.

- a) The Committee shall investigate and consider eligible candidates and submit at the Annual General Meeting a slate of candidates for the Board of Directors.
- b) The Committee shall also submit for consideration by the Board of Directors a slate of Officers/Core Executive and Committee Members.
- c) This task may be assigned to an individual Officer.

ARTICLE X -- FINANCIAL AND ACCOUNTING

SECTION 1 -- The Board of Directors shall decide all matters pertaining to the finances of FBR, bearing the responsibility to conduct the financial affairs of FBR in a sound business-like manner, directing the expenditure of same in such manner as will give no individual or team an advantage over those in competition with such individual or team.

SECTION 2 -- The Board shall not permit the contribution of funds or property to individual teams but shall solicit funds or property for the common use of FBR, and thereby discourage favoritism among teams and to endeavor to equalize the benefits to FBR.

SECTION 3 -- The Board shall not permit the solicitation of funds in the name of FBR unless all of the funds so raised are placed in FBR treasury.

SECTION 4 -- The Board shall not permit the disbursement of funds for other than the conduct of FBR activities in accordance with the rules and policies of Frederick County 13-18 Baseball, Inc.

SECTION 5 -- No Director, Officer, or Member of FBR shall receive, directly or indirectly, any salary, compensation or emolument from FBR for services rendered as Director, Officer, or Member.

SECTION 6 -- All moneys received shall be deposited to the credit of FBR in a local bank or savings and loan and all disbursements over \$50.00 shall be made by check or electronic debit. FBR Treasurer shall sign all checks and, when the check amount is over \$500.00, such other officer or officers or person or persons as the Board of Directors shall determine.

SECTION 7 -- The fiscal year of FBR shall begin on the first day of January and shall end on the last day of December. The Board of Directors shall institute policy relative to the preparation and acceptance of an annual budget, a periodic and annual presentation of financial reports, and an annual audit of the books of FBR.

SECTION 8 -- Upon dissolution of FBR and after all outstanding debts and claims have been satisfied, the Members shall direct the remaining property of FBR to another entity that maintains the same objectives as set forth herein, which is entitled to exception under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or any future corresponding provision.

ARTICLE XI - - LOCAL RULES/ISSUES

1. Schedules
 - a. The Frederick County Babe Ruth League will schedule all games for participating FBR Teams.
2. Rules
Regular Babe Ruth Rules except the addition of local rules stated in the Frederick Babe Ruth Baseball Policy, Rules & Code of Conduct
3. Travel Teams/Sunday League
 - a. All players should be encouraged to play travel/Sunday baseball to prepare them for end of season tournament tryouts and allow the managers to assess their skills
4. Equipment, Balls & Uniforms
FBR will provide equipment, balls and regular season uniforms.
5. Supporting information requirements
 - a. Players contact information
 - b. Managers contact information
6. Safety
 - a. The safety of the players is of the utmost importance. No player will be allowed to play with out the appropriate safety equipment, i.e. batting helmet
 - b. We will follow the Frederick County Public Schools weather related safety requirements.

ARTICLE XII - - AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended, repealed, or altered in whole or in part by a majority vote at any duly organized meeting of the Board of Directors or Members provided notice of the proposed change is included in the notice such meeting.

The Constitution, Resolutions and By-Laws may be amended, repealed or altered in whole or in part by a majority vote at any duly organized meeting of the Board of Directors or members provided notice of the proposed change is included in the notice of such meeting.

ENACTED by the Members at the on , 2015

President, Frederick Babe Ruth